ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 26, 2013
9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Bert Stedman

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG GOVERNCR S APPO NTMENTS

Al aska G| and Gas Conservati on Conm SSi on
Cat hy Foerster

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

State Conmm ssion for Human Ri ghts
Jason Hart

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO 11

"An Act anmending certain provisions of crimnal |aw prohibiting
the manufacture, sale, transfer, or possession of swtchblades
and gravity knives; adding definitions of 'gravity knife' and
"switchblade' to the crimnal law, and reserving to the state,
with limted exceptions for nunicipalities, the authority to
regul ate knives."

- MOVED SB 11 QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 63
"An Act relating to contracts for the preparation of election
ballots."

- MOVED CSSB 63(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2013



BILL: SB 11
SHORT TI TLE: KNI VES, GRAVI TY KNI VES, & SW TCHBLADES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

01/ 16/ 13 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/11/ 13

01/ 16/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (S) STA, JWD

03/ 26/ 13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 63

SHORT TI TLE: CONTRACTS FOR PREPARATI ON OF BALLOTS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FAI RCLOUGH

02/ 22/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 13 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 05/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 05/ 13 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 05/ 13 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 26/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

CATHY FOERSTER, Chair

Al aska G| and Gas Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to  her
confirmation hearing.

JASON HART, Appoi ntee

State Comm ssion for Human Rights

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to  his
confirmation hearing.

CHUCK KOPP, St aff

Senat or Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Introduced SB 11 on behal f of the sponsor.

TODD RATHNER

Knife Rights

Tucson, Arizona

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 11.

ANTHONY NEWWVAN, Social Services Program O ficer

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2013



D vi sion of Juvenile Justice

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided infornation related to SB 11.

LAURA PI ERRE, St aff

Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 63 on
behal f of the sponsor.

GAIL FENUMVAI, Director

D vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 63.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 36 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators W el echowski, Coghill, and Chair Dyson.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Al aska G| and Gas Conservati on Conm SSion

9:04: 25 AM

Chair Dyson announced that the first order of business would be
confirmation hearings. He called Ms. Foerster to testify, noting
there is a copy of her extensive resune in nenbers' packets.

CATHY  FOERSTER, Chai r, Alaska Gl and Gas Conservation
Comm ssion  ( AOGCC), provided information related to her
confirmation hearing.

CHAI R DYSON inquired how many years M. Foerster has served on
AOGCC. He asked why she wanted to be reappointed.

M5. FOERSTER related that she has been on the AOGCC for eight
years. She said that AOGCC quietly does highly technical,
important work for the state of Alaska. It is inportant that
sonmeone with knowl edge and experience of Alaska oil and gas
operations serve on AOGCC. She said she enjoys working on AOGCC
and neets those qualifications.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2013



CHAI R DYSON requested that M. Foerster explain the m ssion of
AOGCC as it relates to good stewardship and conservation of the
state's resources.

M5. FCERSTER explained the major goals of AOGCC. encourage
greater recover of hydrocarbons, prevent waste of hydrocarbons,
protect rights of owners of hydrocarbon resources, protect fresh
ground waters from damage due to oil and gas operations, and
protect human health and safety during well operations.

CHAI R DYSON under stood that AOGCC s records are confidential.

VB. FOCERSTER explained that when an operator drills an
exploratory well, all that data is held confidential for two
years. She said any developnment well drilling or work is not
confidential and neither is production data. She noted that
special studies or requests for data not required by |aw can be
confidential. She used the Prudhoe Bay and Point Thomson studies
as exanples of confidential data outside of the nornmal required
data. She reported on the nost fanous confidential exploratory

well is the KIC#1L "Kick Well"™ in the Arctic National WIldlife
Ref uge.
9:08: 42 AM

CHAI R DYSON concl uded that AOGCC has the nost conprehensive data
set of what the underground structures are |ike.

M5. FOERSTER said that was true in Al aska.
CHAI R DYSON asked if AOGCC approves drilling plans.

M5. FCERSTER said yes. She explained that the drilling plan is
reviewed by engineers and geologists to ensure that the plan
uses sound engineering and the best geology to ensure the best
recovery and safety.

CHAI R DYSON recalled that AOGCC rmakes producers have a bl owout
preventer bel ow the permafrost.

M5. FOERSTER said yes. She explained that the surface hole is
drilled wthout a blowut preventer because it has to be
attached to the pipe which has not been installed yet. A
diverter is required at that stage of drilling. She detail ed how
a surface casing is eventually set, followed by the blowout
preventer.

CHAI R DYSON added that permafrost is unique to Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2013



M5. FOERSTER agr eed.

9:11:37 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the investigation of the Repso
bl owout has been conpl eted and what | essons were | earned.

M5. FOERSTER said she is sure others are investigating that
bl owout, but AOGCC s investigation is conplete. She explained
about shallow gas |enses that come and go throughout the North
Slope. If they are very small they cannot be seismcally
detected. Al though Respol used all the seismic and well contro
data, they encountered a thin gas |ense. She explained that
because of that blowout, Repsol is setting their surface pipe
shal | ower now, so the depth of the lenses is in a section that
is not being drilled for the surface hole, but rather in the
section being drilled with the bl owout preventer.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  asked about the need for production
facilities in order to increase production.

M5. FCERSTER informed the commttee that Kuparuk and Prudhoe Bay
facilities are gas and water constrained. Facilities are
designed for a certain volunme of fluid. At the onset, that fluid
was predom nantly oil. As the fields mature, the anount of gas
and water in the fluids increase and the anount of oil
decreases. In order to for Kuparuk and Prudhoe Bay to produce
substantially nore oil, nore facilities wll be required.
However, everything costs noney and there has to be a return on
the investnent. Prudhoe Bay has had several expansions for the
purpose of production, after doing a financial analysis. She
concluded that the question is whether it is financially viable
to expand the facilities.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about the status of the |PAD gas
processing facility.

M5. FOERSTER said she was not famliar with that facility.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked Ms. Foerster if she has any non-tax
suggestions for increasing oil production.

9:16: 37 AM
M5. FOERSTER responded that for an industry that has a ten-year
payout from the time the discovery is made until the time the

first oil gets into the pipeline, the best thing the |egislative
body can do is provide certainty. She gave an exanple of how a

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2013



conpany would invest in a project that cost nore, but had
stability and rules that didn't change, rather than one that
costs less, but is |less stable.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI commented that it sounds |ike M. Foerster
i's argui ng agai nst the proposed oil tax bill [SB 21].

M5. FOERSTER enphasi zed that she is arguing for stability.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there is any objection to forwarding Ms.
Foerster's nom nation. There was no objection.

He comented about who pays for the expansion of the fluid
handling in wells.

State Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts

9:18: 26 AM

JASON HART, Appointee, State Commission for Human Rights,
provided information related to his confirmation hearing. He
listed his educational experience and his work experience. He
said he currently works for the Alaska Native Federal Health
Consortiumin the Benefits Departnent.

MR. HART related that the reason he would like to serve on the
State Comm ssion for Human Rights is, in part, due to its rich
history. He believed his experience in Human Resources s
related to enploynent discrimnation. He voiced a strong desire
to serve all people. He stated that this will be his first tine
serving on the Conmm ssion.

CHAI R DYSON asked if npbst cases before the Conm ssion involve
j ob di scrimnation.

MR. HART sai d yes.

CHAIR DYSON related that he served several vyears on the
Comm ssion and found that |ives were touched in profound ways.
He said he appreciates M. Hart's service.

He announced the arrival of Senator G essel.

MR. HART offered to answer questi ons.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked about a legislative audit that found

the Comm ssion was not investigating conplaints in a tinely
manner. He added that he has also had constituents conplain

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2013



about the lack of tineliness of investigations. He requested an
opinion fromM. Hart.

MR. HART said he believes that issues should be settled in a
timely manner. He noted that he was not aware of the audit.

CHAIR DYSON noved to forward the followi ng appointnents to a
joint session for consideration:

Al aska G| and Gas Conservati on Conm SSion
Cat hy Foerster

State Comm ssion for Human Rights
Jason Hart

He clarified that the notion does not reflect an intent by any
of the nenbers to vote against or for the confirmation of the
individuals during any further sessions. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

9:23:15 AM
At ease

SB 11- KNI VES, GRAVITY KNI VES, & SW TCHBLADES

9:23: 57 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced the consideration of SB 11.

CHUCK KOPP, Staff, Senator Fred Dyson, sponsor of SB 11,
introduced the bill. He related that SB 11 nmekes it legal to
possess a gravity knife or sw tchblade for anyone 18 years of
age or older. He showed exanples of those knives to conmttee
menbers.

He reported that over the past year, various businesses
guestioned why automatic knives were deened illegal when other
nor e dangerous knives were not. He said the sponsor reviewed the
statistics from the Departnent of Public Safety and from the
Uniform Crine Report to see if knives are a threat to public
safety. The conclusion was that there is no evidence to show
that a class of knives presents a threat to public safety.

The bill nakes it legal for sonmeone 18 and over to possess a
gravity knife or swtchblade and it also decrimnalizes the
manufacture or sale of those knives. The bill further states
that a person may not transfer or sell a gravity knife or

switchblade to a person under 18 wthout the prior witten

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2013



consent of the parent or guardian. A person under 16 nmay possess
a gravity knife or switchblade if he or she has parental
consent .

9:26: 57 AM

MR. KOPP said, additionally, the bill defines gravity knife and
switchblade. He cited two cases, State vs. Strange and State vs.
Weaver, that westled with the definition of a |legal automatic
knife because it was not defined in statute. He said the
definitions proposed in the bill are consistent with federal |aw
and ot her states.

9:28: 43 AM

MR. KOPP reported that currently it is legal for sonmeone who is
21 and older to possess a conceal ed handgun unless they are a
felon. It is also legal for a mnor child to possess a firearm
with permssion of a parent. He detailed the restrictions in the
bill found on page 2, lines 6 and 7, where the word
"manufacture” was deleted. It states that it is illegal for a
person to sell or transfer a switchblade or a gravity knife to a
person under 18 without the prior witten consent of a parent or
guardi an. Also, a person may not knowingly sell a firearm or a
defensive weapon to a person under 18. A defensive weapon is
defined as an electric stun gun or a chem cal agent dispenser -
sonet hing that does not cause a fatal injury.

MR. KOPP said page 3, line 26, is consistent with the statute
regardi ng the possession of a firearm by soneone under 16 years
ol d. Possession of a switchblade or gravity knife is detailed on
page 4, line 10. He said on page 3, line 23, it shows how out of
sync the old law is. He gave other exanples of consequences for
possession of a firearm He stressed that possession of knives
should not fall into the sanme category as firearns and should
not be crimnalized to the sane extent.

He described the nobst dangerous knife as one that is fixed and
open; the others are basically pocket knives and they are
val uabl e tools. Mst Alaskans carry snmall knives that currently
are attached to crimnal liability.

MR. KOPP concluded that the final feature in the bill is in
Title 29 where it reserves to the state the power to regulate
knives, as it does firearnms. This allows uniformty of the |aw
across jurisdictions in Alaska. It is still within the authority
of nmunicipalities to provide protections based on reasonabl eness
founded in the law For exanple, the law already mekes it
illegal for any mnor to conceal a deadly weapon.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2013



He concluded that SB 11 is a very reasonable bill. He referred
to Departnment of Public Safety data that shows assaults on
troopers wth knives is zero and assaults on people is very
small, only 2 percent of all assaults.

9:36:40 AM

He said there is no reason for keeping these tools crimnalized.
He opined that the knives are not scary and should be legal to
possess.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there are any nunicipal |aws that
SB 11 woul d preenpt.

MR, KOPP said he was not aware of any. He pointed out that
knives are |l argely unregul at ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what is being repealed in Section 7
on page 5.

MR. KOPP explained that the bill repeals the |anguage in
m sconduct involving weapons - fifth degree on |line 10, page 4,
where it says "possess or transport a sw tchblade or gravity
knife." He clarified that the law allows for a default position
t hat nmakes knives legal, but if sonmeone sells a knife to sonmeone
under 18, prior consent is necessary. It is illegal for soneone
under 16 to possess a knife w thout parental consent.

CHAI R DYSON said Senator Wel echowski raised an excellent point
about the state needing consistency regarding possession of
knives. He noted there was once a tinme when soneone with a knife
would drive through the Mit-Su area and be out of conpliance
with the | aw

9:39: 29 AM
TODD RATHNER, Knife Rights, testified in support of SB 11. He
di scussed two points related to the bill, the repeal on the

antiquated ban on sw tchblades and knife pre-enption, which says
that the state has the sole authority on knife |laws. He provided
the history of the ban on swtchblades, which began as an
enotional reaction to them in the 1950's. He nmintained that a
swi tchbl ade is not as dangerous as a kitchen knife. He dispelled
reasons that small knives are not considered dangerous, but
tools. He spoke of how safe a closed knife is. He said knife
bans have had no effect on crine. He noted that thirty states
have sim |l ar |egislation.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- March 26, 2013



He spoke of a knife pre-enption canpaign, which gives the
| egi sl ature t he power to regul at e knife | aws, not
muni ci palities.

9:46: 36 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked about the federal Sw tchblade Knife
Act. He wondered if that is still in affect and would present a

probl emin Al aska.

MR. RATHNER said that Act deals with interstate commerce and the
inmportation and of knives. He said it applies only on Indian
Reser vati ons.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI comrented that the Act prohibits possession
on federal |ands, such as Metl akatla, and when nmiling knives.

MR. KOPP said those were good questions. The Sw tchbl ade Knife
Act has been through appellate courts and is left to states to
regul ate. He noted that sw tchbl ades can be purchased on I|ine.

9:49: 19 AM

ANTHONY NEWVAN, Social Services Program Oficer, D vision of
Juvenile Justice, Departnent of Health and Social Services,
provided information related to SB 11. He expl ai ned that because
possession of a switchblade or a gravity knife is currently an
offense in Alaska, Juvenile Justice does see youth for this
offense - about four referrals a year. Under the bill, only
juveniles wunder 16 would be referred for possession of a
switchblade or gravity knife, and then only when they do not
have perm ssion to possess one of these knives. He infornmed the
commttee that the bill appears to create a new status offense,
an offense that can only be conmtted by a juvenile, not an
adul t.

He pointed out that Alaska is a participating state in a formla
grant program adm nistered by the US Ofice of Juvenile
Justice and Delinguency Prevention. As a participating state,
Al aska abides by specific rules governing the secure hol ding of
juveniles who commit status offenses. For exanple, under federal
rules, juvenile status offenders may not be held securely for
any period of time in an adult jail or |ockup. He said Juvenile
Justice sought clarification from the federal office as to
whet her status offenses involving knives would fall wunder the
rules for secure holds, and the federal office indicated they
would. This neans that if the bill passes, Juvenile Justice
woul d need to educate staff and |aw enforcenent partners about
the inclusion of swtchblade and gravity knife possession by

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 26, 2013



certain juveniles as status offenses and report violations of
the rules regarding holds of juveniles to the US. Ofice of
Juveni |l e Justice and Del i nquency Prevention.

CHAI R DYSON t hanked M. Newman for his testinony.

9:51: 54 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the Switchblade Knife Act would
apply in Denali National Park. He thought it woul d.

CHAI R DYSON noted the next commttee of referral is the Senate
Judiciary Comm ttee.

He reported that the bill was brought forth by Representatives
Neuman and Lynn a year ago. He suggested the content of SB 11
woul d be enconpassed into Representative Neuman's bill.

9:53: 15 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SB 11 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations and attached zero fiscal note. There
being no objection, SB 11 was reported from the Senate State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

9:53: 30 AM
At ease

SB 63- CONTRACTS FOR PREPARATI ON OF BALLOTS

9:55:23 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the final order of business would be
SB 63.

LAURA Pl ERRE, Staff, Senat or Anna  Faircl ough, provi ded
information related to SB 63 on behalf of the sponsor. She noted
a work draft in the packets for the nenbers to consider.

CHAI R DYSON asked if it was the N version of SB 63.

M5. Pl ERRE said that was correct.

9:56: 05 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to adopt CSSB 63, |abeled 28-LS0459\N, as
the working draft. There being no objection, it was so ordered.
M5. PIERRE addressed the commttee's concerns from the |ast

hearing of the bill. She noted the sponsor worked with the
Division of Elections to find new |anguage that would satisfy

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2013



the director regarding the flexibility of accepting bids based
on criteria other than |low bid. The work draft now includes the
bid for the preparation of ballots wunder the Request For
Proposal (RFP) process in the state procurenment code.

9:57.:12 AM
CHAI R DYSON requested to know the changes nade to version A,
resulting in version N

MS. PIERRE explained that there is a title change in version N
The new title now reads, "An Act making contracts for the
preparation of election ballots subject to the provisions of the
state procurenent code.” She related that |anguage was renoved
from subsection (3) of Section 1, which now reads, "The director
shall contract for the preparation of ballots under AS 36.30
(State Procurenent Code)."

She descri bed another change on page 4 - Section 2 was renoved
and replaced with, "AS 36.30.850(b)(7) is anmended to read:
contracts for the transportation of ballots under AS 15." This
i ncludes the preparation of ballots under the procurenent code.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the bill applies to both paper
ball ots and el ectronic ballots.

MS. PIERRE deferred to Ms. Fenumai to answer.

9:59:40 AM

GAIL FENUMAI, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eutenant Governor, answered questions related to SB 63. She
said the bill would address printed paper ballots.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI requested information about transparency in
t he procurenent process.

M5. FENUMAI deferred to M. Jones.

10: 00: 29 AM
VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent Oficer, Division of GCeneral
Servi ces, Departnment of Adm nistration, answered questions

related to SB 63. He stressed that the procurenent code is
conpletely transparent, depending on the nethod that is used.
There are four formal procurenents. At the $50,000 and above
| evel, the ITB Process, which is a low bid process, is used and
it is advertised on the on-line public notice web site for 21
days. It is the same process for an RFP, plus results are
publ i shed. Snall procurenents for wunder $50,000 have infornmal

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2013



guotes or RFP's and use the same nethods of advertising. There
are also exceptions built into the procurenent process, such as
for energencies and Ilimted conpetition, which are |ess
transparent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked, if there was a special election
would the procurenment process in place be able to neet the
tinmelines.

MR. JONES said the code is flexible and could adapt to a speci al
election tineframe and all ow ot her types of procurenents.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI envisioned a primary election situation
that requires a fast turnaround. He wondered if a blanket
procurenent woul d be used for the entire el ection season.

10: 04: 27 AM
M5. FENUVAI said the division would procure ballots for the
entire cal endar year.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that it would not be known who woul d
be on the general election ballot until after the primary and
there woul d be tight deadlines.

M5. FENUMAI said that was correct; however, the RFP would go out
based on quantity.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI concluded that the procurenent process
woul d not have to be repeat ed.

MS. FENUMAI said yes; an RFP would be issued based on estinated
guantities for both the primary and the general el ection.

CHAI R DYSON assuned the contract would have provisions in it if
there was a special election.

V5. FENUMAI agr eed.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the division supports the bill

10: 05: 46 AM

M5. FENUMAI related that the exception for ballot printing in
t he procurenent code has been in place since 1986. The division
has experienced no problens with the current printer since 2002.
She stated that if it is the will of the legislature to have the
ballots printed by a conpetitive bidder, the way the bill is
drafted now would be in the best interest of the division.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 26, 2013



CHAIR DYSON stressed the inportance of elections and the
necessity to find a reliable vendor.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI agreed. He inquired if the procurenent code
allows for quality.

10: 07: 04 AM

MR. JONES replied that within the procurenent code, the RFP
process specifically allows for the evaluation of prior
experience, qualifications, and quality of equipnent, rather
t han just price.

SENATOR COGHI LL comented that there is a l|limted scope in
Alaska as to who can do the work. He noted the division has
contracted wth the same vendor for a while. He wondered if past
performance coul d becone part of the criteria.

M5. FENUMAI posited several possible questions the division
could ask in order to determ ne past performance and experience
in printing ballots.

SENATOR COGHI LL gave an exanple, "Have vyou printed for a
muni ci pal i ty?"

M5. FENUMAI said it's obvious that no other printer has printed
ballots on a statewide basis so that would not be a fair
criteria to use in an RFP

10: 09: 18 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report CSSB 63, version 28-LS0459\N
fromcomittee with individual recommendations and a forthcom ng
fiscal note. There being no objection, CSSB 63(STA) was reported
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

10: 09: 49 AM

There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 10:09 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2013



